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Sent via Electronic Mail Only  
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Email: gbyers@da.state.nm.us    

RE: Prosecutorial Review of March 11, 2021, shooting of Mr. Jonathan Strickland by Las 
       Cruces Police Department officers 

Dear District Attorney Byers: 

The New Mexico Office of the Attorney General has concluded our review of the discovery 
provided in this matter, to include all reports and lapel video of this incident. In addition, we 
requested, received and reviewed a full report and analysis of this incident by use of force 
expert, Damon Fay. Upon review of all these materials, our office has determined that criminal 
charges cannot be sustained against law enforcement agents in this case. This review is limited 
to any criminal liability and does not address any potential disciplinary or civil liability issues.    

In the report provided by Mr. Fay, he details specific facts from this incident that explain the 
officers’ actions and reactions during their encounter with Mr. Strickland. Mr. Strickland’s 
domestic partner presented herself to law enforcement to report a domestic violence incident 
involving her and Mr. Strickland in which he allegedly became violent with her and threatened 
her with a firearm. During the course of the investigation, and with knowledge that Mr. 
Strickland was threatening his domestic partner with a firearm and had committed violence 
against her, Las Cruces Police took steps to employ SWAT/tactical resources. Their plan was 
to locate Mr. Strickland, and create an enclosed perimeter around him to restrict his movements 
and peacefully take him into custody. Mr. Strickland presented himself to law enforcement by 
driving his pickup truck to a Las Cruces Police station where he waited in his vehicle.     

Shortly after presenting himself to police, Mr. Strickland fled in his pickup truck, which resulted 
in a police pursuit.  During the course of the pursuit, Mr. Strickland drove into oncoming police 
vehicles and forced one police vehicle to veer and crash into a fixed object on the side of the 
road. Las Cruces Police Sergeant Savage was able to halt Mr. Strickland’s vehicle with his 
own, which placed him in a compromised position, in which Mr. Strickland could easily shoot 
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Sergeant Savage at close range. At that point, Sergeant Savage deployed defensive gunfire from 
his vehicle allowing him to move to a better location for his safety. Simultaneously, Las Cruces 
Police Officer Krause deployed gunfire from the left side of Sergeant Savage further allowing 
him the opportunity to move to a safer location. Additionally, Las Cruces Police Officer Lucero 
also approached from the right side of Sergeant Savage and fired through the windshield of his 
vehicle. As a result, Mr. Strickland was struck by gunfire, fell from his vehicle, and advised that 
he was unarmed.  He was then taken into custody while simultaneously being treated for his 
injuries. Upon Mr. Strickland’s interview at the hospital, he disclosed that he acted as though 
he had a firearm during the encounter.    

New Mexico evaluates whether an officer’s use of deadly force is excessive under the standard 
articulated by the United States Supreme Court in Graham v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386 (1989). See 
State v. Ellis, 2008-NMSC-032, ¶ 25; see also NMSA, 1978, § 30-2-6 (1989) (Justifiable 
homicide by a public officer or public employee).    

The facts in this case suggest that there was not an unreasonable creation of risk by the Las 
Cruces Police Department to justify deadly force.  This shooting was the result of multiple 
attempts to peaceably take Mr. Strickland into custody following the serious allegations of 
violence and threatened use of a firearm.  Based on a totality of the circumstances, Mr. 
Strickland’s actions toward Las Cruces Police before and during his encounter, which 
included creating a perceived deadly threat by pretending to wield a firearm, justified the need 
for use of deadly force. 

Based upon the review of this matter, we are declining criminal prosecution of officers involved 
in this shooting.   For these reasons, this matter will be closed in this office.    

Thank you for contacting the New Mexico Office of the Attorney General. 

Sincerely, 

Greer E. Staley 
Deputy Attorney General 
Criminal Affairs 

Enclosure:  As Referenced Above 

cc: Interim Chief Jeremy Story, Las Cruces Police Department, jstory@lascruces.gov 
 Sheriff Kim Stewart, Doña Ana County Sheriff’s Department, kims@donaanacounty.org 
 File# NMAGO-202107-00390 
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